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First Amended Complaint

Jack Silver, Esq. SBN  #160575
Law Office of Jack Silver
Post Office Box 5469
Santa Rosa, CA 95402-5469
Tel.(707) 528-8175
Fax.(707) 528-8675
lhm28843@sbcglobal.net

Attorneys for Plaintiff
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER WATCH

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER
WATCH, a non-profit corporation,

Plaintiff,
v.

CHEVRON U.S.A. INC., CHEVRON
CORPORATION, and DOES 1 - 10,
Inclusive,

Defendants.
                                                              /

CASE NO.:   4:09-cv-00669 CW

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, CIVIL PENALTIES,
RESTITUTION AND REMEDIATION
[Clean Water Act 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.;
Resource Conservation & Recovery Act
42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq.]

Plaintiff NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER WATCH (hereafter, “RIVER WATCH”)

by and through its attorneys, and for its First Amended Complaint against Defendants,

CHEVRON U.S.A. INC., CHEVRON CORPORATION, and DOES 1-10, Inclusive (hereafter,

“CHEVRON”), states as follows:

I. NATURE OF CASE

1. This is a civil suit brought against CHEVRON, and as yet unidentified DOES defendants

under the citizen suit enforcement provisions of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, also

known as the Clean Water Act (hereafter, “CWA”), 33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq., specifically CWA

§ 505, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311, 1342 and 1365, to stop CHEVRON from repeated and ongoing

violations of the CWA.  These past and currently ongoing violations are detailed in the Notice

of Violations and Intent to File Suit dated July 18, 2008, (hereafter, “CWA Notice”,) which is

made part of the pleadings of this case and attached hereto as Exhibit A.
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2. RIVER WATCH alleges that CHEVRON, in the course of its ownership and/or operation

of one or more of the underground storage tank (“UST”) facilities identified in this Complaint

and in the CWA Notice, is routinely violating the CWA’s prohibitions against discharging a

pollutant from a point source to waters of the United States without a National Pollutant

Discharge Elimination System (hereafter, “NPDES”) permit.  (See CWA §  301(a), 33 U.S.C.

§ 1311(a).)   RIVER WATCH alleges that CHEVRON has violated “effluent standards or

limitations” by allowing petroleum hydrocarbons above State of California Maximum

Contaminant Levels to be released and discharged into waters of the United States, and

specifically into Boles Creek, Rohner Creek and/or the Eel River.

3. RIVER WATCH alleges CHEVRON is also routinely violating the CWA’s prohibition

against discharging a pollutant from a point source to waters of the United States without a

NPDES permit by permitting petroleum hydrocarbons and petroleum constituents to persist in

soil and groundwater at each of the facilities identified in the CWA Notice by failing to comply

with directives issued by the Regional Water Quality Control Board, North Coast Region, and

by failing to implement an adequate Corrective Action Plan to remediate the pollution at the

identified sites.

4. Specifically, this Complaint seeks relief under the statutory provisions of the CWA for

CHEVRON’s discharge of pollution from current and/or former fuel dispensing facilities and

the properties over which CHEVRON has past or present ownership or control identified as:

a. Former Unocal Bulk Plant, 359 Main Street, Fortuna, California; and

b. Chevron Station # 9-3476, 12 Weed Boulevard, South Weed, California;

into the waters of the State of California and the United States in violation of the above-

enumerated statutes and laws.

5. RIVER WATCH alleges that CHEVRON illegally discharges to waters of the United

States which are habitat for threatened or endangered species as that term is defined by the

California and the United States Environmental Protection Agency.

6. Under 33 U.S.C. § 1251(e), Congress declared its goals and policies with regard to public

participation in the enforcement of the CWA.  33 U.S.C. §1251(e) provides, in pertinent part:
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Public participation in the development, revision, and enforcement of any

regulation, standard, effluent limitation, plan or program established by the

Administrator or any State under this chapter shall be provided for, encouraged,

and assisted by the Administrator and the States.

7. This First Amended Complaint is also brought against CHEVRON under the enforcement

provisions of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (hereafter, “RCRA”,  42 U.S.C. §

6901 et seq., specifically RCRA § 7002 (a)(1)(A),  42 U.S.C.  §  6972(a)(1)(A) and RCRA § 

7002(a)(1)(B), 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(B), to stop CHEVRON from repeated and ongoing

violations of the RCRA.  These violations are detailed in the Notices of Violations and Intent

to File Suit dated July 18, 2008 and April 5, 2010 (hereafter, “RCRA Notices”,) which are made

part of the pleadings of this case and attached hereto as Exhibit B.

8. Specifically, RIVER WATCH seeks relief under the provisions of the RCRA for

CHEVRON’s discharge of pollution from current and/or former fuel dispensing facilities and

the properties over which it has past or present ownership or control identified as:

a. Former Unocal Bulk Plant, 359 Main Street, Fortuna, California;

b. Chevron Station #9-3476, 12 Weed Boulevard, South Weed, California;

c. Former Chevron Station, 3135 Gibbons Drive, Alameda, California;

d. Former Chevron Station, 5810 Nave Drive, Novato, California and,

e. Former Chevron/Texaco Station Site, 713 Silverado Trail, Napa, California,

into the waters of the State of California and the United States in violation of the above-

enumerated statutes and laws.   For purposes of this First Amended Complaint, the facilities

identified in Paragraph 4 and Paragraph 8 herein are hereafter referred to collectively as “the

Facilities”.

9. RIVER WATCH alleges that CHEVRON’s use and storage of petroleum and other

pollutants at the Facilities, as described in detail in the RCRA Notices, regularly violates

standards, regulations, conditions, requirements or prohibitions effective pursuant to the RCRA

regarding storage of petroleum and like pollutants. See 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(A).
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10. RIVER WATCH alleges that CHEVRON is routinely violating the RCRA's prohibition

against creating an imminent and substantial endangerment to human health and the environment

by its operations at the Facilities, as identified in the RCRA Notices, which operations have

caused contamination of soil, groundwater and surface water. See 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(B).

Further, that pollutants at the Facilities leach into groundwater from current and former USTs

which have either been removed from or abandoned at the Facilities without adequate measures

taken to remove pollutants from soil and groundwater.

11. RIVER WATCH alleges that CHEVRON is also routinely violating provisions of the

Regional Water Quality Control Board, North Coast Region’s  Basin Plan with respect to

a.  Pollution remediation;

b. Environmental Protection Agency regulations codified in the Code of Federal

Regulations;

c. Toxics standards promulgated by the California State Water Resource Control

Board; and,

d. By failing to implement an adequate and comprehensive Corrective Action Plan

to remediate the contamination at each of the Facilities.

12. RIVER WATCH seeks declaratory relief, injunctive relief to prohibit future violations,

the imposition of civil penalties, and other relief for CHEVRON’s violations of the CWA’s

prohibition of discharging a pollutant from a point source to waters of the United States without

a NPDES permit, for CHEVRON’s violations of the RCRA’s standards and regulations

applicable to the use and storage of petroleum and other pollutants, and for CHEVRON’s

violations of the RCRA's prohibition against creating an imminent and substantial endangerment

to human health and the environment.

II. PARTIES TO THE ACTION

13. Plaintiff NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER WATCH, is a 501(c)(3) non-profit public

benefit corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of California, with headquarters

and main office located at 500 North Main Street, Suite 110, Sebastopol, California.  RIVER

WATCH is dedicated to protect, enhance and help restore the surface and subsurface waters of
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Northern California.  RIVER WATCH’s members live in Northern California, including

Humboldt, Siskiyou, Alameda, Marin and Napa Counties, where the Facilities under

CHEVRON’s operation and/or control are located.

14. Members and supporters of RIVER WATCH  RIVER WATCH reside in the vicinity of,

derive livelihoods from, own property near, and/or recreate on, in or near and/or otherwise use,

enjoy and benefit from the waterways, watersheds and associated natural resources into which

CHEVRON discharges pollutants as alleged herein, or by which CHEVRON’s operations

adversely affect those members’ interests, in violation of CWA § 301(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a)

RCRA § 7002(a)(1)(A), 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(A) and RCRA §7002 (a)(1)(B),  42 U.S.C. §

6972(a)(1)(B).   Said members use the affected waters and watershed areas for domestic water,

recreation, sports, fishing, swimming, hiking, photography, nature walks, religious, and spiritual

practices, and the like.   The health, economic, recreational, aesthetic and environmental interests

of RIVER WATCH and its members have been, are being, and will continue to be adversely

affected by CHEVRON’s unlawful violations as alleged herein.  RIVER WATCH contends

there exists injuries in fact to its members, causation of these injuries by CHEVRON’s

complained of conduct herein, and the likelihood that the requested relief will redress these

injuries.

15. RIVER WATCH is informed and believes and on said information and belief alleges that

defendant CHEVRON U.S.A. Inc. is a corporation registered in the State of California,  doing

business in San Ramon, California under the name of CHEVRON U.S.A. INC.

16. RIVER WATCH is informed and believes and on said information and belief alleges that

defendant CHEVRON CORPORATION is a corporation registered in the State of California,

doing business in San Ramon, California under the name of CHEVRON Corporation.

17. Defendants DOES 1-10, Inclusive, respectively, are persons, partnerships, corporations

and entities, who are, or were, responsible for, or in some way contributed to, the violations

which are the subject of this First Amended Complaint, or are, or were, responsible for the

maintenance, supervision, management, operations, or insurance coverage of the Facilities. The

names, identities, capacities, and functions of DOES 1-10, Inclusive, are presently unknown to
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RIVER WATCH.  RIVER WATCH shall seek leave of court to amend this First Amended

Complaint to insert the true names of said DOES Defendants when their identities and capacities

have been ascertained.

III. JURISDICTIONAL ALLEGATIONS

18. Subject matter jurisdiction is conferred upon this Court by CWA § 505(a)(1), 33 U.S.C.

§ 1365(a)(1), which states in part,

“any citizen may commence a civil action on his own behalf against any person

. . . who is alleged to be in violation of (A) an effluent standard or limitation .

. . . or (B) an order issued by the Administrator or a State with respect to such

a standard or limitation.”

For purposes of CWA § 505, “the term ‘citizen’ means a person or persons having an

interest which is or may be adversely affected.” Subject matter jurisdiction is further conferred

upon this Court by RCRA § 7002(a)(1),  42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1), which states in part,

"...any person may commence a civil action on his own behalf (A) against any

person ... who is alleged to be in violation of any permit, standard, regulation,

condition, requirement, prohibition or order which has become effective

pursuant to this chapter, or (B) against any person ...who has contributed or who

is contributing to the past or present handling, storage, treatment, transportation

or disposal of any solid or hazardous waste which may present an imminent and

substantial endangerment to health or the environment."

19. Pursuant to CWA § 505(b)(1)(A), 33 U.S.C. §1365(b)(1)(A), RIVER WATCH gave

notice of the CWA violations alleged in this First Amended Complaint more than sixty (60) days

prior to commencement of this lawsuit, to: (a) CHEVRON; (b) the United States Environmental

Protection Agency, both federal and regional, and (c) the State of California Water Resources

Control Board.

20. Pursuant to CWA § 505(c)(3), 33 U.S.C. § 1365(c)(3), a copy of this First Amended

Complaint shall be served on the United States Attorney General and the Administrator of the

federal Environmental Protection Agency.
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21. Pursuant to RCRA § 7002 (2)(A), 42 U.S.C. §6972(2)(A), RIVER WATCH gave notice

of the RCRA violations alleged in this First Amended Complaint more than ninety (90) days

prior to the commencement of this lawsuit to: (a) CHEVRON, (b) the United States

Environmental Protection Agency, both federal and regional, (c) the State of California Water

Resources Control Board, and (d) the State of California Integrated Waste Management Board.

22. Venue lies in the Northern District of California, pursuant to CWA §505(c)(1) , 33 U.S.C.

§ 1365(c)(1), and  RCRA §§ 7002(a) and (b), 42 U.S.C. §§ 6972(a) and (b), as the Facilities which

RIVER WATCH contends have been and/or remain under CHEVRON’s ownership and/or

control and at which illegal discharges have occurred, which are the source of the violations

complained of in this action, are located within this District.

IV. STATEMENT OF FACTS

RIVER WATCH incorporates by reference any allegations set forth above in Paragraphs

1 through 22 including the CWA Notice and the RCRA Notices as though fully set forth herein.

RIVER WATCH is informed and believes, and on such information and belief alleges as

follows:

23. CHEVRON owns, operates, leases or is otherwise legally responsibility for the

remediation of the Facilities, and for the remediation of the contamination at the Facilities due

to the presence of petroleum hydrocarbons which have leaked or otherwise escaped from the

Facilities.

24. The Facilities have been identified as sources of pollutants which pose a threat to human

health and/or to the local environment. In the early-1970’s, petroleum contamination was first

detected in soil and groundwater beneath the Fortuna site in the early 1970s, beneath the Weed,

Alameda and Novato sites in the mid 1980's and beneath the Napa site in 1990.  Subsequent

investigation at the Facilities indicated the contamination was and is attributable to unauthorized

releases from USTs and piping systems, surface spills and/or poor maintenance or operational

practices.

25. CHEVRON has stored and currently stores (at the Weed site) large quantities of

petroleum products in USTs at the Facilities in a manner which has allowed significant quantities
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of hazardous petroleum constituents, including MTBE, to be discharged to soil and groundwater

beneath the Facilities, beneath adjacent properties, and into surface waters of the United States.

These unauthorized discharges into soil, groundwater and surfaces waters are ongoing and

continuing at the present time, creating an imminent and substantial endangerment to public

health and the environment.

26. The discharges and releases by CHEVRON as alleged herein and in the RCRA Notices

are both knowing and intentional. CHEVRON in the course of operations at the Facilities, has

used, stored and sold petroleum products at the Facilities, which are known to contain benzene,

toluene, TPHg, ethlybenzene, xylenes, and/or MTBE, and intends or has intended that such

products be sold to and used by the public. Benzene and toluene are known carcinogens and/or

reproductive toxins, and have been listed chemicals under Proposition 65 since at least 1991.

27. CHEVRON has known of the contamination at the Facilities at least since the 1970s as

noted above, and is also aware that failing to remediate the pollution allows the contamination

to migrate through soil and groundwater at and adjacent to the Facilities, and to continually

contaminate and re-contaminate actual and potential sources of drinking water.

28. Regulatory agencies have ordered CHEVRON to investigate and remediate petroleum

contamination at the Facilities following the discovery of petroleum releases.  CHEVRON has

conducted some site investigations and remedial work in response to agency directives,

however, significant levels of petroleum contamination remain in soil and groundwater beneath

and adjacent to the Facilities.

29. Based upon current levels of contamination, CHEVRON has been unsuccessful in abating

the contamination.  To date, the levels of TPHg, benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and xylenes

remain high above the State of California’s allowable and established Maximum Contaminant

Levels (hereafter, “MCLs”) and/or Water Quality Objectives (hereafter, “WQOs”) for said

constituents in surface and groundwaters, creating an imminent and substantial endangerment

to public health and the environment.

30. Surface and groundwater in the areas of California in which the Facilities are located have

been designated by regulatory agencies as capable of supporting domestic supply.
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31. The illegal discharges of pollutants and activities complained of in this First Amended

Complaint occur in the waterways and watersheds identified in the CWA Notice and the RCRA

Notices, all of which are waters of the United States.  The Regional Water Quality Control

Board, North Coast Region, has determined those watershed areas and affected waterways are

beneficially used for  drinking water, water contact recreation, non-contact water recreation,

fresh water habitat, wildlife habitat, preservation of rare and endangered species, fish migration,

fish spawning, industrial service supply, navigation, and sport fishing.

32. Violations of the statutes alleged in this First Amended Complaint are a major cause of

the continuing decline in water quality, and a continuing threat to existing and future drinking

water supplies in Northern California. With every discharge, groundwater supplies are

contaminated. These discharges can and must be controlled in order for the groundwater supply

to be returned as a safe source of drinking water.

V. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

A. Clean Water Act

33. CWA § 301(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of pollutants  from a “point

source” into the navigable waters of the United States, unless such discharge is in compliance

with applicable effluent limitations as set by the Environmental Protection Agency and the

applicable state agency. These limits are to be incorporated into a NPDES permit specifically

for that point source.  Additional sets of regulations are set forth in the Basin Plan, California

Toxics Plan, the Code of Federal Regulation and other regulations promulgated by the

Environmental Protection Agency and the State Water Resources Control Board.  CWA § 301(a)

prohibits discharges of pollutants or activities not authorized by, or in violation of an effluent

standard or limitation or an order issued by the Environmental Protection Agency or a State with

respect to such a standard or limitation including a NPDES permit issued pursuant to CWA §

402,  33 U.S.C. § 1342.  The two Facilities identified in Paragraph 4 of this First Amended

Complaint have been owned, operated, leased or managed by CHEVRON, and are point sources

under the CWA.



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

10

4:09-cv-00669 CW

First Amended Complaint

34. The affected waterways described in the CWA Notice are navigable waters of the United

States within the meaning of CWA § 502(7), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7).

35. The Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency has authorized the Regional

Water Quality Control Board to issue NPDES permits, subject to specific conditions and

requirements, pursuant to CWA § 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342.

36. RIVER WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief alleges that

CHEVRON has no NPDES permit for discharging hydrocarbon contamination from its current

and/or former USTs at the two Facilities identified in Paragraph 4, into waters of the United

States. All unauthorized point source discharges to waters of the United States are illegal.  Each

of the two Facilities is a point source.  Discharges from such point sources via tributary

groundwaters to waters of the United States without a NPDES Permit are illegal.

B. Resource Conservation and Recovery Act

37. RCRA § 7002(a)(1)(A), 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(A) permits an action against any person

who violates a PERMIT, STANDARD or REGULATION pursuant to the RCRA.  RIVER

WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief alleges that CHEVRON

has stored, handled and disposed of materials containing petroleum, petroleum constituents, and

other toxic pollutants, defined as hazardous wastes under the RCRA, in a manner which has

allowed these pollutants to be discharged to soil and groundwater beneath and adjacent to the

Facilities in violation of regulations regarding the use and disposal of hazardous wastes. See

RCRA § 3004(d), 42 U.S.C. §6924(d).

38. RIVER WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief alleges that

CHEVRON has violated provisions of the RCRA governing the use and operation of USTs used

for the storage of petroleum products.  See RCRA subchapter IX, 42 U.S.C. § 6991 et seq.  Also,

that CHEVRON has been responsible for unauthorized petroleum hydrocarbon releases at the

Facilities and has removed and/or abandoned USTs on the Facilities used for the storage of

petroleum without implementing required and effective cleanup and abatement measures.  At

its Weed site, CHEVRON has ongoing retail petroleum delivery operations which further

complicate the remediation process at that location.
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39. RCRA § 7002(a)(1)(B), 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(B) permits an action against any person

who has contributed or who is contributing to the past or present handling of any solid or

hazardous waste which may present an imminent and substantial endangerment to health or the

environment.   RIVER WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief

alleges that the petroleum constituents, and other pollutants, identified in the RCRA Notices,

discharged at the Facilities in concentrations significantly greater than allowable  MCLs and/or

WQOs are hazardous wastes pursuant to RCRA § 6903(5), 42 U.S.C. § 6972 (5).  Also, that

pollutants from these substances have leached into soil and groundwater beneath and adjacent

to the Facilities, creating an imminent and substantial endangerment to health and the

environment.

40. RIVER WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief alleges that

CHEVRON’s point source discharges from the Facilities are not regulated by a NPDES permit

in violation of the CWA’s prohibition against discharge of pollutants from a point source

without a NPDES permit.  The violations are established in Regional Water Quality Control

Board files for the two facilities identified in Paragraph 4 herein as well as in studies conducted

by or for CHEVRON in compliance with orders from the Regional Water Quality Control Board

or other regulatory agencies.  The enumerated violations are detailed in the CWA Notice and

designate the section of the CWA violated by the described activities.

41. RIVER WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief alleges that

CHEVRON’s discharges to soil and groundwater as described herein and in the RCRA Notices

have violated the RCRA’s regulations regarding the storage and disposal of hazardous wastes.

The violations are established in Regional Water Quality Control Board files for the Facilities

as well as in studies conducted by CHEVRON in compliance with orders from the Regional

Water Quality Control Board or other regulatory agencies.

42. RIVER WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief alleges that

CHEVRON’s discharges to soil and groundwater as described herein and in the RCRA Notices

are in violation of the  RCRA's prohibition against creating an imminent and substantial

endangerment to health and the environment.  The violations are established in Regional Water
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Quality Control Board and/or lead regulatory agency files for the Facilities as well as in studies

conducted by CHEVRON in compliance with orders from the Regional Water Quality Control

Board or other regulatory agencies.  The enumerated violations are detailed in the RCRA

Notices, incorporated herein by reference, and below.

VI. CLAIMS FOR RELIEF

A.  FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violation of the CWA

33 U.S.C. §  1251 et seq., 33 U.S.C. § 1342 (a) and (b),  33 U.S.C. § 1311

Discharge of Pollutants from a Point Source Must be Regulated by a NPDES Permit

RIVER WATCH realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations of Paragraphs

1 through 42 above, including the CWA Notice, as though fully set forth herein.  RIVER

WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief alleges as follows:

43. CHEVRON has violated and continues to violate the CWA as evidenced by the

discharges of hydrocarbon pollutants from a point source without a NPDES permit in violation

of  CWA 301,  33 U.S.C. § 1311.

44. The violations of CHEVRON are ongoing and will continue after the filing of this First

Amended Complaint. RIVER WATCH alleges herein all violations which may have occurred

or will occur prior to trial, but for which data may not have been available or submitted or

apparent from the face of the reports or data submitted by CHEVRON to the Regional Water

Quality Control Board, or to RIVER WATCH prior to the filing of this First Amended

Complaint.  RIVER WATCH will file additional amended complaints, if necessary, to address

CHEVRON’s State and Federal violations which may occur after the filing of this First

Amended Complaint.  Each of CHEVRON’s violations is a separate violation of the CWA.

45. RIVER WATCH avers and believes and on such belief alleges that without the imposition

of appropriate civil penalties and the issuance of appropriate equitable relief, CHEVRON will

continue to violate the CWA as well as State and Federal standards with respect to the discharges

and releases enumerated herein. Also, that the relief requested in this First Amended Complaint

will redress the injury to RIVER WATCH and its members, prevent future injury, and protect
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the interests of RIVER WATCH and its members which interests are or may be adversely

affected by CHEVRON’s violations of the CWA, as well as other State and Federal standards

as alleged herein.

B. SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violation of the RCRA

42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq., specifically 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(A)

RIVER WATCH realleges and incorporates by reference the allegations of Paragraphs

1 through 45 above, including the RCRA Notices as though fully set forth herein. RIVER

WATCH is informed and believes and on such information and belief alleges as follows:

46. RCRA § 7002(a)(1)(A), 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(A) permits an action against any person

who violates a PERMIT, STANDARD or REGULATION pursuant to the RCRA. Civil penalties

may be assessed against any person or entity in violation of this section, under the provisions of

42 U.S.C. §§ 6928(a) and 6928(g).

47. CHEVRON’s storage and disposal of toxic levels of petroleum and petroleum

constituents at the Facilities, defined as hazardous wastes under the RCRA, has caused the

discharge of hazardous wastes to soil and groundwater in violation of regulations regarding the

use and disposal of hazardous wastes (see RCRA § 3004 (d), 42 U.S.C. §6924(d)), and the use

and operation of USTs (see RCRA § 9002(a),  42 U.S.C. § 6991(a).)

48. RIVER WATCH avers and believes and on such belief alleges that without the imposition

of appropriate civil penalties and the issuance of appropriate equitable relief, CHEVRON will

continue to violate a PERMIT, STANDARD or REGULATION pursuant to the RCRA,

specifically RCRA § 3004(d), 42 U.S.C. §6924(d). See RCRA §  9002(a), 42 U.S.C. §6991(a).)

49. Continuing acts or the failures to act by CHEVRON to address these violations will

irreparably harm RIVER WATCH and its members.  RIVER WATCH avers and believes and

on such belief alleges that the relief requested in this Complaint will redress the injury to RIVER

WATCH and its members, prevent future injury, and protect the interests of RIVER WATCH

and its members which interests are or may be adversely affected by CHEVRON’s violations

of the RCRA, as well as other State and Federal standards as alleged herein.
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C. THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

Violation of the RCRA

42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq., specifically 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(B)

RIVER WATCH incorporates the allegations set forth above in paragraphs 1 through 49

and the RCRA Notices as though fully set forth herein.  RIVER WATCH  is informed and

believes, and on such information and belief alleges as follows;

50. RCRA § 7002(a)(1)(B), 42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(B) provides that any person may

commence a civil action against any person or governmental entity including a past or present

generator, transporter, owner or operator of a treatment, storage or disposal facility who has

contributed to the past or present handling, storage, treatment, transportation, or disposal of any

solid or hazardous waste which may present an imminent and substantial endangerment to health

or to the environment.   Civil penalties may be assessed against any person or entity in violation

of this section, under the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 6928 (a) and (g). The RCRA UST regulatory

program is adopted and implemented in California under the provisions governing the

Underground Storage of Hazardous Substances (California Health & Safety Code § 25280 et

seq.)

51. CHEVRON has owned and/or operated the Facilities at which it stores or has stored, and

transfers or has transferred, gasoline, diesel, fuel oil and mixed oils, and is now legally

responsible for the remediation of the Facilities.

52. The Facilities contain USTs which are either leaking or in the past have leaked (before

being removed or replaced), petroleum chemicals including benzene, toluene, TPHg,

ethylbenzene, xylenes, and MTBE into groundwater.  Or, petroleum products have been washed

off the Facilities into nearby surface waters and groundwaters.  For purposes of the RCRA,

petroleum products and their constituents: TPHg, benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, xylenes, and

MTBE, are both “solid wastes” and “hazardous wastes” within the meaning of the statute.

53. Petroleum products and constituent chemicals within these petroleum products such as

benzene and toluene (known carcinogens and/or reproductive toxins), are known to be hazardous
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to the environment, and if released into the environment in sufficient quantity pose an imminent

and substantial risk to public health and to the environment.

54. The amounts of petroleum products and their constituents, TPHg, benzene, toluene,

ethylbenzene, xylenes, and/or MTBE, released by CHEVRON at the Facilities are in sufficient

quantity to pose an imminent and substantial risk to both the environment and to human health.

55. Continuing acts or failure to act by CHEVRON to address these violations of the RCRA

will irreparably harm RIVER WATCH and its members, for which harm they have no plain,

speedy or adequate remedy at law.  RIVER WATCH avers that the relief requested in this

Complaint will redress the injury to RIVER WATCH and its members who are or may be

affected by the violations alleged herein.

VII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, RIVER WATCH, respectfully requests this Court grant the following

relief:

56. Declare CHEVRON to have violated and to be in violation of the CWA with respect to

the two Facilities identified in Paragraph 4 of this First Amended Complaint;

57. Issue an injunction ordering CHEVRON to immediately clean up and abate the two

Facilities identified in Paragraph 4 of this First Amended Complaint in compliance with the

CWA and applicable State and Federal standards;

58. Order CHEVRON to pay to the U.S. Treasury civil penalties of $27,500.00 per violation/

per day for each of its violations of the CWA;

59. Declare CHEVRON to have violated and to be in violation of the RCRA for discharging

from the Facilities petroleum products and constituents which are known carcinogens and/or

reproductive toxins in sufficient quantities to pose an imminent and substantial risk to health and

to the environment;

60. Enjoin CHEVRON from discharging petroleum products and petroleum constituents from

the Facilities, which petroleum products and constituents pose an imminent and substantial risk

to health and the environment;
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61. Order CHEVRON to comply with all of the substantive and procedural requirements of

the RCRA with respect to the Facilities;

62. Order CHEVRON to pay civil penalties of up to $37,500.00 per violation/per day to the

U.S. Treasury, for each of the Facilities, pursuant to applicable provisions of the RCRA

including   42 U.S.C. §§ 6928(a) and 6928(g), and/or to pay for remediation projects to redress

the harm caused by CHEVRON’s violations of RCRA as alleged herein. Each of the above-

described violations of the RCRA subjects the violator to a civil penalties on a per day/per

violation basis.  Civil penalties may be assessed for violations occurring within five (5) years

prior to the initiation of a citizen enforcement action;

63. Enter such preliminary injunctions, permanent injunctions or other orders pursuant to the

RCRA requiring CHEVRON to enjoin and abate the nuisance resulting from the discharges and

releases of petroleum products and constituents from the Facilities, and to enjoin the migration

of petroleum products and constituents into soil and groundwater at and surrounding the

Facilities;

64. Impose injunctive relief requiring CHEVRON to immediately investigate, access and

categorize the extent of pollution and implement the “best available technology” to remediate

pollution at the Facilities;

65. Impose injunctive relief requiring CHEVRON to immediately commence complete

remediation of the contamination at and adjacent to the Facilities once the contaminant plumes

have been adequately characterized;

66. Award costs and fees (including reasonable attorney, expert, witness, and consultant fees)

to RIVER WATCH as authorized by both the CWA and the RCRA; and,

67. Award such other relief as this Court may deem appropriate.

DATED: July 14,  2010 /s/ Jack Silver
Jack Silver
Attorney for Plaintiff
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER WATCH
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Law Office of Jack Silver
P.O. Box 5469 Santa Rosa, California 95402
Phone  707-528-8175 Fax  707-528-8675

lhm28843@sbcglobal.net

Via Registered Mail - Return Receipt Requested

April 5, 2010

David J. O’Reilly, CEO and President

Chevron Corporation

6001 Bollinger Canyon Road

San Ramon, CA 94583

Gary P. Luquette, President

Chevron U.S.A., Inc.

6001 Bollinger Canyon Road

San Ramon, CA 94583

Mr. Mark Hom

Ms. Anna Cheng

3135 Gibbons Drive

Alameda, CA  94501

Angelo Orciuoli, (Registered Agent)

AOK, LLC

2 Brady Place

Menlo Park, CA 94025

Re: Notice of Violations and Intent to File Suit or Amend Suit under the Resource

Conservation and Recovery Act

Dear Owners, Site Managers and Responsible Parties:

The Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”) 42 U.S.C. § 6901 et

seq.,  requires that sixty (60) days prior to the initiation of an action for violation of permit,
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standard, regulation, condition, requirement, prohibition or order effective under RCRA, a

private party must give notice of the violation to the alleged violator, the Administrator of the

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the State in which the violation is alleged to have

occurred (42 U.S.C. § 6972(b)(1)(A)). The RCRA also requires that a private party must provide

ninety (90) days prior notice to the alleged violator, the Administrator of the Environmental

Protection Agency and the State in which the violation is alleged to have occurred before

initiating an action for an imminent and substantial endangerment to human health or the

environment. (42 U.S.C. § 6972(b)(2)(A)).

However, if Subtitle C, Subchapter III, violations are alleged such as in this Notice,

actions can be brought without observing the 60/90 day notice waiting periods that are applicable

to 42 U.S.C. §§  6972(a)(1)(A) and § 6972(a)(1)(B) claims; also, when Subtitle C, Subchapter

III claims are brought in conjunction with §§ 6972(a)(1)(A) and 6972(a)(1)(B) claims, none of

the claims require a waiting period before a complaint under RCRA provisions may be filed.

On behalf of Northern California River Watch (“River Watch”), I am providing statutory

notification to Chevron Corporation and Chevron U.S.A., Inc. of continuing and ongoing

violations of the RCRA, in conjunction with their continuing operations at three former Northern

California underground storage tank (“UST”) sites as identified in this Notice.

River Watch is also providing notice of these same violations to the owners of the real

property on which these sites are situated, known to River Watch at this time to be Mark Hom,

Anna Cheng and AOK, LLC. Pursuant to the RCRA, the current owners of these sites may be

in part legally responsible for ongoing contamination due to mere ownership of the real property

on which and under which the hazardous contamination has been found.

River Watch hereby notifies Chevron Corporation, Chevron U.S.A. Inc., Mark Hom

Anna Cheng and AOK, LLC (collectively hereafter, “Polluters”), that at the expiration of the

appropriate notice periods under the RCRA,  River Watch intends to commence a civil action

against Polluters, or amend any pending actions against Chevron Corporation and Chevron

U.S.A., Inc. on the following grounds:

1. Polluters’ use and storage of petroleum products at the sites identified in this

Notice has violated and continues to violate permits, standards, regulations,

conditions, requirements and/or prohibitions effective pursuant to the RCRA

regarding storage of petroleum in USTs.  [42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(A)];

2. Polluters’ operations at the sites identified in this Notice have caused petroleum

contamination of soil and groundwater which presents an imminent and

substantial endangerment to human health and the environment [42 U.S.C. §

6972(a)(1)(B)].

3. Polluters’ past and current operations at the sites identified in this Notice violate

the provisions of RCRA subchapter III (Subtitle C) which governs the handling

of hazardous wastes. River Watch contends that Polluters have inadequately

maintained records of the manner in which their hazardous wastes have been
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treated, stored and/or disposed of; that they have inadequately monitored, reported

and/or complied with existing regulations concerning their hazardous wastes; that

they have inadequately provided storage facilities for their hazardous wastes; and,

in the past that they have not developed adequate contingency plans for effective

action to minimize damage from the unauthorized releases of hazardous

contaminants – all of which have presented a substantial endangerment to human

health and to the environment.

SITES

1. 3135 Gibbons Drive, Alameda, California

This former UST site is located at the corner of Gibbons Drive and Fernside Boulevard

in a residential section of Alameda. The initial unauthorized release was discovered in

approximately July of 1986 when the dispenser islands and associated piping were removed,

along with the USTs.  Groundwater at the site is shallow, less than five feet bgs.

Following the removal of the station building and related equipment, a single family home

was constructed on the site by June of 1989, currently owned by Mark Hom and Anna Cheng.

By October of 1995, 10 monitoring wells had been installed.   Several soil gas vapor surveys

were conducted between July of 1987 and October of 2002.  It is unclear whether the previous

surveys have documented any risks to human health due to soil vapor gas.

Between 2001 and early 2002, there were 5 mobile extraction efforts which intended to

reduce the free-phase hydrocarbons found in at least one location on site.  The extraction efforts

have not succeeded in eliminating the separate phase hydrocarbons (“SPH”), or in remediating

this property.   Monitoring in late 2008 found SPH of 0.4 feet at well C-1.  Monitoring in

December of 2008 continued to document SPH in well C-1, adjacent to the residential dwelling.

On the basis of reports available at this time, it appears very little remediation work has been

conducted in addition to the 5 extraction events and soil gas vapor surveys.  According to the

Alameda County Health Care Services Agency, there has been no on-going remediation work

since the extraction trench at the site was shut down.

The most recent available monitoring appears to be that of February of 2009, with  data

noting TPHg levels as high as 59,000 ug/l, and benzene levels as high as 3,100 ug/l (both at C-

1).

At the present time, the Alameda County Health Care Services Agency has called for

renewed soil vapor gas evaluation to insure that the residents of the single family home are not

exposed to hazardous fumes, and for remediation work to deal with the SPH, beyond the monthly

visits to bail out the free-phase product from C-1.

On the basis of the current condition of this site, River Watch believes that RCRA and

State of California remediation provisions require, at a minimum, the following evaluative and

remediation work:



Notice of Violations - Page 4 of 13

• Elimination of free product so that effective site remediation can begin;

• A current vapor entrapment survey which satisfies current standards as set by the

Alameda County Health Care Services Agency for determination of threat to human

health;

• A current sensitive receptor survey which determines the threat to hydrocarbon migration

from the site into the Airport Channel, a tidal canal that lies approximately 650 feet

downgradient of the site;

• A current preferential pathway study which determines whether any adjacent sewer lines

or storm drains may provide access to sensitive receptors around the site;

• Complete site characterization to include the installation of additional monitoring wells

to eliminate what the Alameda County Health Care Services Agency has identified as

data gaps in the current monitoring reports;

• Performance of the necessary analyses to determine the residual hydrocarbon mass as a

means of gauging progress of contamination removal.

2. 5810 Nave Drive, Novato, California

This former service station site is located on the northwest corner of Nave Drive

(formerly Redwood Boulevard) at the intersection of Roblar Drive and close to a Highway 101

off ramp. The property underlying this site is technically still owned by the California Dept. of

Transportation (CalTrans), but has been deeded to the City of Novato, although the City appears

to have not formally accepted the deeded land as yet.  There is currently a bus shelter located on

this property.

An unauthorized petroleum hydrocarbon leak was first detected in approximately June

of 1983 – nearly 27 years ago.  All of the facilities, USTs, dispenser islands and associated

piping were removed by the following year.

No remediation has been conducted since the UST was removed in 1984.   In 2006 the

consultant at that time proposed to inject oxygen to assist the bioremediation of the

hydrocarbons, but the Regional Water Quality Control Board required a Feasibility Study and

Corrective Action Plan prior to that work. It is apparent from the records on file that no

Feasibility Study and Corrective Action Plan has ever been submitted.

Groundwater at the site remains significantly contaminated.  Monitoring reports indicate

the levels of contaminants under the property have remained stable, fluctuating only due to

seasonal increases in groundwater flow.  As of the last reported monitoring done in April of

2009, TPHg levels were as high as 29,000 ug/l, and benzene levels were as high as 14,000 ug/l.

Inasmuch as these levels have been shown to fluctuate, it may be reasonable to anticipate that

the levels may revert to the 47,000 ug/l for TPHg and 17,000 ug/l for benzene as was found in
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July of 2008.  The site consultant indicated that there has been no natural attenuation at

anywhere near a suitable rate.

Neither a Conceptual Site Model, nor a Feasible Source Control, as recommended by

Regional Water Quality Control Board has ever been submitted or performed. The Board

believes proactive work to eliminate or reduce the source mass must be initiated, because

groundwater concentrations are significant.  River Watch agrees.

On the basis of the current condition of this site, River Watch believes that RCRA and

State of California remediation provisions require, at a minimum, the following evaluative and

remediation work:

• Elimination or reduction of the high levels of hydrocarbons by means of some effective

remediation strategy;

• A current sensitive receptor survey which determines the threat to hydrocarbon migration

site northward into a surface water, the Arroyo San Jose, which is 600 feet downgradient

of the site;

• A current preferential pathway study which determines whether any adjacent sewer lines

or storm drains may provide access to sensitive receptors around this site. There are

currently only 6 monitoring wells; 2 in a downgradient direction.  This leaves broad data

gaps in the monitoring which need to be supplemented with the installation of additional

wells;

• Complete site characterization to include the installation of additional monitoring wells

as noted above;

• An aquifer profile to analyze the extent to which the TPHg and benzene may be migrating

into any underlying aquifer and affecting potential sources of drinking waters;

• Performance of the necessary analyses to determine the residual hydrocarbon mass as a

means of gauging progress of contamination removal.

3. 713 Silverado Trail, Napa, California

The real property underlying this former Chevron/Texaco service station site is currently

owned by AOK, LLC. Four USTs were originally removed and replaced in the early 1960s.

In December of 1990, 4 replacement tanks were removed and approximately 340 cubic yards of

hydrocarbon impacted soil were excavated. After service station operations at Bartley’s Texaco

ceased in 1990, the site became a truck rental yard. It is currently used as a automotive repair

shop utilizing the original station building.

Since 1990, there have been regular subsurface investigations, but very little in the way

of proactive remediation.  Sensitive receptor surveys have resulted in findings of private water

supply wells within 500 feet of the site, but these have been deemed to be upgradient or cross-
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gradient, and not threatened by the on-going groundwater contamination. The site consultant has

concluded that the site is generally defined, although this reliance seems to be based upon a very

limited number of monitoring wells.

Remediation work began only in 2006 with the application of a surfactant solution

intending it might mitigate the residual, non-aqueous-phase liquid hydrocarbons. Given the

remaining high levels of TPHd, is seems this strategy has not proven effective.  Extraction events

did take place, removing approximately 22,500 gallons of hydrocarbon-impacted groundwater,

but there is no data [i.e. no residual mass calculations] to allow the regulators to determine how

much contaminated groundwater remains under and around the site.

At the present time, TPHd levels are as high as 76,000 ug/l, and TPHg levels as high as

13,000 ug/l.   Sulfate (the surfactant used) is as high as 100,000 ug/l, on the basis of the last

recorded monitoring event of September 1, 2009. The site consultant has indicated that levels

of contamination continue to remain within historical ranges.  This seems to imply that continued

remediation efforts are required before the site can be returned to State-mandated Maximum

Contaminant Levels.

On the basis of these findings, River Watch believes that RCRA and State of California

remediation provisions require, at a minimum, the following evaluative and remediation work:

• Elimination or reduction of the high levels of TPHd and TPHg hydrocarbons by means

of some effective remediation strategy;

• A current sensitive receptor survey which determines the threat to hydrocarbon migration

westward into a surface water, the Napa River, approximately 700 feet downgradient of

the site;

• A current preferential pathway study which determines whether any adjacent sewer lines

or storm drains and other conduits may provide access to sensitive receptors around the

site. There are broad data gaps in the monitoring that should be supplemented with the

installation of additional downgradient wells;

• Complete site characterization to include the installation of additional monitoring wells

as noted above;

• An aquifer profile to analyze the extent to which the TPHg and benzene may be migrating

into any underlying aquifer and affecting potential sources of drinking water, as well as

impacting the Napa River;

• Performance of the necessary analyses to determine the residual hydrocarbon mass as  a

means of gauging progress of contamination removal.
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REGULATORY STANDARDS

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 is federal law of the United States,

the goals of which include the protection of the public and the environment from harm caused

by waste storage and disposal, and to mandate the proper remediation of soil and groundwater

which has been contaminated by hazardous waste and hazardous products, including petroleum

hydrocarbons and gasoline formula constituents.  The RCRA is a strict liability statute with a

statute of limitations of five years.   Pursuant to the RCRA, California has enacted laws and

regulations that must be observed in conjunction with its provisions.

California’s “Water Quality Objectives” exist to ensure protection of the beneficial uses

of water.  Several beneficial uses of water exist, and the most stringent water quality objectives

for protection of all beneficial uses are selected as the protective water quality criteria.

Alternative cleanup and abatement actions need to be considered that evaluate the feasibility of,

at a minimum: (1) cleanup to background levels, (2) cleanup to levels attainable through

application of best practicable technology, and (3) cleanup to protective water quality criteria

levels. Existing and potential beneficial uses of area groundwater include domestic, agricultural,

industrial and municipal water supply.

The Regional Water Quality Control Board has adopted a Water Quality Control Plan or

Basin Plan which designates all surface and groundwater within the North Coast and San

Francisco Bay regions as capable of supporting domestic water supply.  The Board has adopted

Maximum Contaminant Levels (“MCLs”) and/or Water Quality Objectives (“WQOs”) for

petroleum constituents in surface and groundwater within the region of 50 ppb for TPHg, 1 ppb

for benzene, 150 ppb for toluene and 5 ppb for MTBE.

VIOLATIONS

1. Permits, Standards and Regulations [42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(A)]

Polluters’ use and storage of petroleum products at the sites identified in this Notice has

violated and continues to violate permits, standards, regulations, conditions, requirements and/or

prohibitions effective pursuant to the RCRA regarding storage of petroleum in USTs. [42 U.S.C.

§ 6972(a)(1)(A)]

Disposition, discharge and release of pollutants at the Sites can be traced as far back as

the 1980's. RCRA is a strict liability statute. The range of dates covered by this Notice

Polluters have caused or permitted, cause or permit, or threaten to cause or permit, petroleum

contaminants, petroleum constituents and other hazardous waste to be discharged or deposited

where it is, or probably will be, discharged into waters of the State and now creates, or threatens

to create, a condition of pollution or public nuisance. The discharge and threatened discharge

of such petroleum waste is deleterious to the beneficial uses of water, and is creating and

threatens to create a condition of pollution and nuisance which will continue unless the discharge

and threatened discharge is permanently abated.
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2. Mishandling of Hazardous Waste [42 U.S.C. § 6924 et seq.]

From April 1, 2005 through April 1, 2010, Polluters used and stored petroleum products

at the Sites in a manner which has allowed significant quantities of hazardous petroleum

constituents to be discharged to soil and groundwater beneath the Sites and beneath adjacent

properties.  Contaminant levels of TPHg, benzene, toluene, and MTBE in groundwater at the

Sites are significantly greater than the allowable MCLs and/or WQOs for said constituents.

River Watch alleges that Polluters have, at all times material, engaged in the following

activities in violation of the RCRA’s waste handling provisions:

• Failed to adequately maintain records of hazardous wastes as identified in this Notice

which were treated, stored or otherwise disposed of on or offsite [42 U.S.C. §6924(a)(1)];

• Failed to satisfactorily monitor, inspect, and report hazardous wastes in accordance with

RCRA provisions [42 U.S.C. §6924(a)(2)];

• Failed to adequately treat, store or properly dispose of hazardous waste found at the

Sites[42 U.S.C. §6924(a)(3)];

• Failed to adequately locate, design and construct hazardous waste treatment, storage or

disposal facilities [42 U.S.C. §6924(a)(4)];

• Failed to properly implement contingency plans for effective action to minimize

unanticipated damage from the treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste found

at the Sites [42 U.S.C. §6924(a)(5)].

Information currently available to River Watch indicates that the effects of Polluters’

handling, treatment, storage, transportation, and/or disposal of hazardous waste in violation of

RCRA § 3004 has occurred every day during the past five (5) years, or on numerous separate

occasions, and, that these violations are continuing.

3. Unpermitted Handling, Treatment, Storage, Transportation and/or Disposal of

Hazardous/Solid Waste [42 U.S.C. § 6925 et. seq.]

River Watch alleges that from April 1, 2005 to April 1, 2010 Polluters have engaged in

the following activities in violation of the RCRA’s waste handling provisions:

•  Polluters’ deposition and maintenance of hazardous and/or solid waste as described

herein causes and has caused the generation and discharge to the environment of

hazardous waste;

• Polluters have installed and maintained a system of conveyances to dispose of   hazardous

and/or solid waste generated and released from the Sites;
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• Polluters do not possess permits for the handling, storage, treatment, transportation,

and/or  disposal of hazardous or solid waste at the Sites;

• Polluters’ unpermitted handling, storage, treatment, transportation and/or disposal of

hazardous and/or solid waste is a violation of RCRA § 3005, 42 U.S.C. § 6925.

Information currently available to River Watch indicates that the effects of Polluters’

handling, treatment, storage, transportation, and/or disposal of hazardous waste in violation of

RCRA § 3005 has occurred every day during the past five (5) years, or on numerous separate

occasions, and that these violations are continuing.

4. Prohibition Against Open Dumping [42 U.S.C. § 6945 et. seq.]

River Watch alleges that from April 1, 2005 to April 1, 2010 Polluters have engaged in

the following activities in violation of the RCRA’s waste handling provisions:

• Polluters have engaged in open dumping by their discharge of hazardous waste to open

ground where it will and has contaminated the soils, groundwater and surface waters as

described herein;

• The Sites do not qualify as landfills under 42 U.S.C. § 6944, and do not qualify as

facilities for the disposal of hazardous and/or solid waste.

• Polluters have no RCRA-authorized permit for the disposal, storage or treatment of solid

or hazardous waste of the type currently and historically discharged at the Sites.

Information currently available to River Watch indicates that the effects of Polluters’

open dumping in violation of RCRA § 4005 has occurred every day during the past five (5)

years, or on numerous separate occasions, and that these violations are continuing.

5. UST Regulations [42 U.S.C. § 6991 et. seq.]

Provisions of the RCRA govern the use and operation of USTs used for storage of

petroleum products (subchapter IX, 42 U.S.C. § 6991 et seq.), and above-ground tanks used for

the same purposes.  The RCRA UST regulatory program is adopted and implemented in

California under the State Underground Storage of Hazardous Substance Account Act

(California Health & Safety Code § 25280 et seq.).

From April 1, 2005 to April 1, 2010,  Polluters’ use and storage of petroleum at the Sites

has allowed significant quantities of hazardous petroleum constituents to be released or

discharged into soil and groundwater in violation of provisions of the RCRA and California UST

regulatory programs including, but not limited to, provisions governing general operating

requirements for USTs, release detection and prevention requirements, release reporting and

investigation requirements, and release response and corrective action requirements.
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Specifically, with respect to each of the Sites, River Watch alleges Polluters are

responsible for the following statutory violations:

• Failure to prevent a release, in violation of 40 CFR §§ 280.30, 280.31 and California

Health & Safety Code §§ 25292.1(a) - (c), 25292.3(a) and (b);

• Failure to properly detect and monitor releases, in violation of 40 CFR §§ 280.40 - 280.44

and California Health & Safety Code § 25292;

• Failure to properly report and keep records of the release, in violation of 40 CFR §§

280.34, 280.50, 280.52, 280.53, 280.63(b) and California Health & Safety Code §§

25289, 25293 and 25295(a)(1);

• Failure to take proper corrective action, in violation of 40 CFR §§ 280.53, 280.60 -

280.66 and California Health & Safety Code § 25295(a)(1).

Information currently available to River Watch indicates that the effects of Polluters’

violations of RCRA’s UST regulations, RCRA § 9001, have occurred every day during the past

five (5) years, or on numerous separate occasions, and that these violations are continuing.

6. Imminent and Substantial Endangerment [42 U.S.C. § 6972(a)(1)(B)]

Between April 1, 2005 and April 1, 2010, Polluters’ used and stored petroleum products

at the Sites in a manner which has allowed significant quantities of hazardous petroleum

constituents to be discharged to soil and groundwater beneath the Sites and beneath adjacent

properties.  The contaminant levels of TPHg, benzene, toluene, and MTBE in groundwater at

the Sites are significantly greater than the allowable MCL and/or WQO for said constituents.

Benzene, MTBE, TAME, and TBA are known or suspected carcinogens.  Toluene is a

reproductive toxin. Ethylbenzene, methanol and xylene are live toxins.  All are known to harm

both plants and animals.  In their concentration at the Sites, these pollutants are creating an

imminent and substantial endangerment to public health and the environment.

Information currently available to River Watch indicates that the effects of Polluters’

handling, treatment, storage, transportation, and/or disposal of its hazardous waste in violation

of RCRA § 7002(a)(1)(B) have occurred every day during the past five (5) years, or on numerous

separate occasions, and that these violations are continuing.

 The violations alleged in this Notice are knowing and intentional in that Polluters have

used, stored and sold petroleum products which are known to contain hazardous substances; and,

have intended that such products will be sold to and used by the public.  Polluters have known

of the contamination at the Sites at least since the late 1980’s, and have also known that failing

to promptly remediate the pollution allows the contamination to migrate through soil and

groundwater at and adjacent the Sites, and to continually contaminate and re-contaminate actual

and potential sources of drinking water.
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Violations of the RCRA of the type alleged herein are a major cause of the continuing

decline in water quality and pose a continuing threat to existing and future drinking water

supplies of Northern California. With every discharge groundwater supplies are contaminated.

These discharges can and must be controlled in order for the groundwater supply to be returned

to a safe source of drinking water.

In addition to the violations set forth above, this Notice is intended to cover all violations

of the RCRA evidenced by information which becomes available to River Watch after the date

of this Notice.

ENTITY BRINGING NOTICE - NORTHERN CALIFORNIA RIVER WATCH

Northern California River Watch is a non-profit corporation dedicated to the protection

and enhancement of the waters of the State of California including all rivers, creeks, streams and

groundwater in Northern California.  It is organized under the laws of the State of California.

Its address is 500 No. Main Street Suite 110, Sebastopol, CA, 95472; telephone number is (707)

824-4372.

The violations of Polluters as set forth in this Notice affect the economic stability,

physical health and aesthetic enjoyment of members of River Watch who reside and recreate in

the affected watershed areas.  The members of River Watch use the watershed for domestic

water supply, agricultural water supply, recreation, sports, fishing, swimming, hiking,

photography, nature walks and the like.  Their health, use and enjoyment of this natural resource

are conditions specifically impaired by the violations of the RCRA as set forth in this Notice.

CONTACT INFORMATION

River Watch has retained legal counsel to represent them in this matter. All

communications should be addressed to:

Jack Silver, Esquire

Law Office of Jack Silver

P.O. Box 5469

Santa Rosa, CA 95402

Tel. (707) 528-8175

Fax (707) 528-8675

CONCLUSION

River Watch believes that this Notice sufficiently states the grounds for filing suit under

the statutory and regulatory provisions of the RCRA as to the Sites identified above.  At the close

of the notice periods or substantially earlier, River Watch intends to file a suit against Polluters

and/or amend any current suit against Chevron Corporation and Chevron U.S.A. Inc., for each

of the violations of the RCRA alleged herein, and with respect to the existing conditions at the

Sites.
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However, River Watch is willing to discuss effective remedies for the violations

referenced in this Notice. If Polluters wish to pursue such discussions in the absence of

litigation, they are encouraged to initiate such discussions immediately so that the parties might

be on track to resolving the issues raised in this Notice.  River Watch will not delay the filing

of a lawsuit if discussions have not commenced within a reasonable time following receipt of

this Notice.

Very truly yours,

Jack Silver

JS:lhm

cc: Lisa Jackson, Administrator

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

401 M Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20460

Wayne Nastri, Regional Administrator

U.S. Environmental  Protection Agency, Region 9

75 Hawthorne St.

San Francisco, CA 94105

Dorothy R. Rice, Executive Director

State Water Resources Control Board

P.O. Box 100

Sacramento, California  95812-0100

Mark Leary, Executive Director

Calif. Integrated Waste Management Board

1001 “I” Street

Sacramento, CA 95814

Executive Director

Calif. Department of Toxic Substances Control

P.O. Box 806

Sacramento, CA 95812-0806

California Attorney General’s Office

California Department of Justice

P.O. Box 944255 

Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
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California Environmental Protection Agency

P.O. Box 2815

Sacramento, CA 95812-2815

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System, Inc.

Registered Agent for Service

Chevron Corporation

Chevron U.S.A., Inc.

P.O. Box 526036

Sacramento, CA 95852


